LANDMARKS ASSOCIATION OF ST. LOUIS
GUARDING THE ARCHITECTURAL HERITAGE OF ST. LOUIS FOR OVER FIFTY YFARS

LANDMARKS LETTER

VOLUME 44, NUMBER 1

A Special Edition Focusing on the Future of Area Public Schools

St. Louis Public Schools Facilities
Management Plan: A Red Flag for Preservation?

At its meeting on January 29,
2009, the Special Administra-
tive Board (SAB) of the St
Louis Public Schools (SLPS)
will review a draft Facilities
Management Plan for the dis-
trict's inventory of buildings.
Prepared by consultants MGT
of America, Inc., the plan will
be the blueprint for school
consolidation, maintenance,
renovation and closure for the
near future. All parties expect
the plan to make specific rec-
ommendations for another
wave of school closures. The
District forecasts shrinking
enrollment and a need to re-
duce the number of active
buildings.

Since any plan for closure or
maintenance for this District
will involve historic buildings,
Landmarks Association has
been monitoring the facilities

management plan from the
start. The announcement of
the planning process was a red
flag to local preservationists.
Our staff and board members
have attended public meetings
and lobbied district officials to
advocate for placing a strong
preservation component in the
plan. Hopefully, in months
ahead we will be working

Left, the 1908
Carr School,
designed by

B William B. Ittner.
Abandoned and
deteriorated, this
school still retains
many decorative
elements, includ-
ing colorful tiles
and intricate

mosaics.

cooperatively with the SAB to
forge a facilities plan that all
can support.

On page 3 of this issue of the
Landmarks Letter, readers will
find a position statement on the
facilities management plan re-
cently adopted by our board.

Michael R. Allen,
Assistant Director
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DEMOLITIONS & CLOSINGS SWEEP U. CITY SCHOOLS

The school buildings of the
University City School District
(UCSD) are close cousins of
those of the St. Louis Public
Schools. Built from the 1910s
to the 1950s, all but three were
designed by either William B.
Ittner or his successor firm.
They span a wide range of
styles from Tudor, Georgian,
and Italian Renaissance Reviv-
als to Art Deco and mid-
century modern, making them
one of the most unique collec-
tions of schools in the metro-
politan area. Unfortunately,
like those of the SLPS, they
are currently the subject of a
major facilities’ overhaul

which threatens the existence of

some, and the architectural
integrity of others.

In an attempt to counter declin-
ing enrollment and a number of
other woes, last summer the
UCSD kicked off its Destina-

l:i Pershing Elementary,
\ 6751 Bartmer Ave-
nue, is slated for

A | demolition and re-
placement. WWI
General John ]. Per-
shing himselfwa:

o| present at the laying
zzfits cornerstone in

.| December 1919.

tion U. City Schools program to
address matters of student
achievement, facilities, family/
community involvement, and
finances. From July to Novem-

ber the district held a series of
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A Failure of Policy: the Abandonment of Arlington School

The story of William Ittner’s Arlington School begins with turmoil in
the St. Louis public school system at the turn of the 20" century;
unfortunately, it may end in the midst of a similar situation at the
turn of the 21*. This is a cautionary tale that illustrates the sad fate
that may await many school buildings if they are closed with no
provisions for preservation or redevelopment.

In the late 19" and early 20" centuries, the St. Louis public school
system enjoyed national and even international prominence. Initially
recognized for the pioneering teaching philosophies of William Tor-
rey Harris and Susan Blow, it later came to be known for the excep-
tional, state-of-the-art facilities designed by architect William B.
Ittner. Things weren’t always perfect however. On March 23, 1897,
the Missouri State Legislature took steps to solve problems of politi-
cal infighting and inefficiency that had plagued the St. Louis Public
School Board for years, disbanding the problematic Board and call-
ing for the election of a replacement. On June 22, the new Board
chose architect William B. Ittner, FAIA, as Commissioner of School
Buildings. Desiring swift action to fix the problems the board had
left to fester, Ittner was handed a list of projects in need of immediate
attention. Arranged in order of urgency, the list called for the con-
struction of twelve new schools and additions. Ittner’s first task was
an expansion of Arlington School at 1617 Bard Avenue.

Ittner designed Arlington around an earlier eight-room school in the
winter of 1898, just months after his appointment. Though Arlington
contains an earlier building constructed in stages by architects Tho-
mas Furlong, Charles Ramsey, and August Kirchner, Ittner’s 1898
reconstruction and expansion absorbed the building’s earlier form
entirely. Ittner altered the appearance and organization of the school
from a typical square, two-story block (a form dictated by long-
standing Board policy), to a forward-thinking design that would
prove to be the first step on his path to national prominence.
Through his re-invention of Arlington, Ittner gave voice to his early
ideas regarding the specialized form and function of school design.

Though Monroe, Elliot, Jackson and Sherman Schools are often cited
as Ittner’s first major works in St. Louis, it appears that Arlington
actually belongs at the top of the list. All five schools are H-plan
buildings that Ittner began constructing in 1898. Arlington’s building
permit was issued in March of 1898, predating the other schools.
Ittner’s design for Arlington was a clear and substantial step toward a
classic H-plan building and it can be regarded as the experiment that
created and tested a functional H-plan prototype. This unique plan
gained rapid recognition in architectural circles and three years later
was featured in Edmund Wheelwright’s seminal 1901 work School
Architecture.

Shamefully, Arlington School has been vacant since it closed in
1993; the SLPS waited a full decade after closure to put the building
on the market. While Arlington was initially boarded up, it was not
adequately monitored or maintained. The building was quickly ac-
cessed by vandals and vagrants. Interior finishes were smashed,
nearly all of the terra cotta lion heads which once graced the cornice
were chiseled off by thieves, windows were broken, and some of the
flashing, pipes, and wiring were stolen. What had once been a thriv-
ing neighborhood school and an important work by a world re-
nowned architect is now a shadow of its former self.

Following a decade of vandalism and neglect, the SLPS decided to
offer the damaged (aka “mothballed”) building at the bargain price of
$100,000; a year later it sold to a Chicago-based holding company

Top, A 1930 view qur]ington School, ca. 1898, William B. Itmer’sfimt project as
Commissioner @FSchaol buildings. Bottom, a recent view @Fthe vacant and heavily
vandalized school building.

for just a quarter of that price. Unfortunately, this absentee owner
has treated the building with the same indifference. No regard has
been given to securing the building and no thought given to the
impact that its vacant and accessible presence has on the surround-
ing neighborhood. It continues to serve as a haven for vandals and
is a perennial “problem property” with the Citizen’s Service Bu-
reau. Reports against it range from “unsecured vacant building,” to
“apprehension of stray animals.”

Arlington’s future brightened briefly in 2007 when Alderman Jef-
frey Boyd asked Landmarks Association to prepare a National Reg-
ister nomination of the property. Boyd hoped that the availability
of rehabilitation tax credits would spur re-development after some
interest in acquisition of the building was shown by a neighboring
church. To date, the owners of the property have opted not to sell
and Arlington remains vacant and deteriorating. When I photo-
graphed the school during the nomination process in late 2007, an
elderly woman who lived across the street in a home with an im-
maculately kept garden came out to speak with me. Her property
stood out in hopeful contrast with the many decaying buildings on
the surrounding blocks. She waved to me and eagerly asked if
something was finally going to happen with the school. All I could
say was “I don’t know, but I sincerely hope so.”

Andrew Weil, Research Associate
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Statement on the St. Louis Public Schools Facilities Management Plan

Adopted by the Board of Directors of Landmarks Association of St. Louis, Inc, January 15, 2009.

Landmarks Association of St. Louis strongly urges the Special Administrative
Board and the St. Louis Public Schools to include sensible provisions for historic
preservation in the Facilities Management Plan that it will adopt early this year.
The majority of schools in the St. Louis Public Schools' inventory are historic
buildings that are among the finest in the country, and they deserve our careful
stewardship. We acknowledge that closures are necessary in order to responsibly
advance the mission of the school district. However, this does not necessarily
mandate a sacrifice of these fine buildings to neglect, demolition or inappropriate
alterations.

The historic schools of the district represent a nationally recognized contribution to J
the design of academic facilities. Buildings designed by district architects August
Kirchner, William B. Ittner and Rockwell Milligan resolved age-old problems of
light, ventilation, circulation and space in educational architecture. These schools
are pleasant, humane environments suitable to the purpose of public education.
One of the most remarkable features of the schools is that they are as suitable for | Built in 1895 according to designs of Kirchner and Ittner, the
contemporary needs as they were for past ones. “mothballed” Harrison School at 4163 Green Lea Place.

Schools also provide neighborhoods with irreplaceable institutional and architectural anchors. The buildings are sources of student and
neighborhood pride, demonstrate the important role of education in our communities, and serve as cornerstones for neighborhood renewal.
Furthermore, the district's continued use of these buildings has conserved the energy resources that would have gone into demolition and new
construction. The district's historic schools truly are gifts from our ancestors that we cannot afford to squander.

Recent Background

In 1988, Landmarks Association surveyed the entire inventory of district schools built before 1938. Landmarks identified 110 district build-
ings with architectural significance, of which at least seven have since been demolished and many more have been sold. Subsequently, Land-
marks developed and listed the St. Louis Public Schools of William B. Ittner Multiple Property Documentation Form to streamline listing these
important schools on the National Register of Historic Places. Under that document or individually, 25 historic schools built by the district are
now listed in the National Register of Historic Places. Most of the designations have gone to decommissioned schools that have been adapted
to new uses, however.

In 1989, Landmarks Association and the St. Louis chapter of the American Institute of Architects forged a unique partnership with the St.
Louis Public Schools during its $200 million Capital Improvement Program. Working with the district and its architects, Land marks' staff and
board members and architects from the AIA chapter advised the district on maintenance and replacement of windows, renovation work and
new additions to historic schools. The results of this collaboration ensured that needs of the district were met while the integrity of the schools
was maintained. Much of the historic rehabilitation work, especially decisions to save or replicate wooden windows, actually led to cost re-
ductions. Most of the district's current historic schools have had massive investment and total lead abatement within the last 25 years due to
the Capital Improvement Program, a fact that must be remembered today.

Rounds of school closings that occurred in 1993, 1996, 2003 and 2007 have left mixed results. Some schools closed in prior rounds remain
vacant, and some have experienced heavy deterioration and vandalism. Many that are now rehabilitated, like Franklin School and Grant
School, were abandoned for nearly a decade before developers purchased them. In 2003, the district nearly sold the historic Theresa School to
a developer who planned to demolish it. Landmarks Association worked with members of the Board of Education to reverse that decision and
find a new buyer that has rehabilitated the school into housing. Because of this incident, the Board adopted a policy preventing sale of closed
schools to any party that would demolish them.

Unfortunately, the five schools closed in 2007 remain vacant. While developers have found creative uses for closed schools, the district has
not always been prompt in selling closed schools and large waves of closures can overwhelm the market demand for reuse projects. Currently,
the district needs to reduce the number of schools while upgrading technology and improving educational results. None of the district's needs
preclude continued use of historic schools. In fact, maintenance of historic schools already in use offers the district the chance to reduce capi-
tal expenditures on buildings and instead invest funds in technology, supplies and personnel.

Recommendations
Landmarks Association recommends that the SAB include the following principles in the final facilities management plan:

Historic Preservation
1. That the District not demolish any school identified as historically or architecturally significant in Landmarks’ 1988 schools survey;

2. That the District place all eligible schools in the National Register of Historic Places to recognize their significance and to ensure demoli-
tion review under municipal ordinance;

(Continued on page 4)
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SPLS Management Plan (Continued from page 3)

3. That the District make all changes or additions to buildings
(especially those included in the 1988 schools survey) respectful of
defining architectural features and landscaped settings;

4. That the District obtain detailed bids from qualified contractors and
architects with historic renovation work experience when evaluating the |
cost of retaining existing buildings, to avoid the assumption that reno-
vating historic schools necessarily costs more than building new

schools;

5. That the District consult with design professionals experienced in
historic renovation work when making plans to renovate any existing

schools included in the 1988 survey;

6. That the District develop, in concert with preservation consultants, a

realistic maintenance plan for all the historic

porate them into a capital funding plan with rigorous follow through;

School Closures

1. That the District consider leasing schools to public or private entities as an alternative to sale;

school buildings and incor-

Historic Adams Elementary school closed in the 1993 round of closures. In 1999,
after extensive rehabilitation and construction of a major addition, the school re-

opened as a combined elementary school and community center for the Forest Park

Southeast neighborhood. The elected School Board is advocating just this type of

combined use and creative solutions for SLPS buildings.

2. That the District include in all sales contracts a clause forbidding demolition of schools included in the 1988 survey;

3. That the District reverse its policy of forbidding sales to charter schools or other educational entities, since such sale is preferable to aban-

donment or demolition;

4. That the District make every attempt to sell or lease buildings and avoid mothballing buildings, for the sake of neighborhood stabilization;

5. That the District properly secure and monitor any historic school closed but retained for future use.

Work continues on the acquisition and
preservation of Sugarloaf Mound. In
late December, Landmarks Research
Associate Andrew Weil met with a
broad coalition of interested parties
including Congressman Russ
Carnahan, Jim Gray (Principal Chief
of the Osage Nation), Osage Elder/
scholar Charles Red Corn, the Great
Rivers Greenway District as well as
representatives of state and local gov-
ernments to discuss the future of the
mound.

The coalition is exploring several vi-
able options and hopes to arrive at a
solution in a matter of weeks. It
should be noted that Landmarks is
currently holding a generous gift of
$5,000 that was donated toward the
acquisition of the mound by the Ar-

Touring the mound on Dec. 29 (from left), Alderman
Craig Schmid, Congressman Russ Carnahan, Osage Chief

Jim Gray, Osage Historic Preservation Oﬁricer Dr. Andrea

Hunter. (Photo courtesy Congressman Carnahan’s office)

Chuck Berry House
Listed in Register

chaeological Research Center of St.
Louis. As work progresses toward final-
izing a plan for Sugarloaf, Weil is work-
ing with the St. Louis Cultural Resources
Office to draft an ordinance declaring
Sugarloaf Mound a City Landmark.

On December 12, 2008, the Chuck
Berry House was formally listed in the
National Register of Historic Places.
Compiled by Landmarks staff member
Lindsey Derrington, the nomination
initially met with resistance from the
National Park service because Berry
was still performing. Fortunately, Fed-
eral reviewers ultimately recognized
Berry’s significant contributions to
and impact on the course of popular
music around the world.
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U City School Closures (Continued from page 1)

public meetings, largely attended by UCSD parents. The architec-
tural firm Bond Wolfe of Clayton led the two meetings concerned
with developing a plan for the system’s school buildings. While at
the height of student enrollment the district ran ten elementary
schools, two middle schools, and a single high school, today it con-
sists of six elementary schools, a single middle school, and the high
school. The architects offered seven hypothetical plans for whittling
down this number even further, citing building conditions, site lay-
out and property size, interior layout, and state standards as criteria
for evaluation (Bond Wolfe specifically stated that educational
success was not a factor).

Four of the schools in question were designed by Ittner himself.
Delmar-Harvard Elementary consists of two joined buildings con-
structed in 1913 and 1920, the former of which was the first built by
the newly-founded district. Completed in 1920, Pershing Elemen-
tary was named for the recently victorious General John J. Pershing,
head of the American Expeditionary Force in World War I, who
presided at the laying of its cornerstone. Nathaniel Hawthorne Ele-
mentary was completed in 1931, and Jackson Park Elementary
opened the following year. William B. Ittner Inc. is responsible for
the 1951 design for Barbara C. Jordan (originally Daniel Boone)
Elementary and the 1955 design for Brittany Woods Middle. Flynn
Park Elementary was designed by Ferrand & Fitch, the firm of then-
head of Washington University’s School of Architecture, and built
in two phases in 1924 and 1926. University City High, the district’s
crown jewel, was designed by Trueblood & Graf in 1930 with Fer-
rand & Fitch returning as associated architects. (Today Delmar-
Harvard is part of a local historic district, while Jackson Park and
University City High are part of the University City Education Na-
tional Historic District).

Each of Bond Wolfe’s plans entailed closing at least two elemen-
tary schools, and all but one involved the demolition and replace-
ment of at least two more. The option which suggested closing two
elementary schools and renovating the remaining four was not in-
cluded in the three proposals recommended by the architects as best
for the district. Of these, the plan which the UCSD school board
unanimously approved on December 16™ calls for the closing of
Nathaniel Hawthorne and Delmar-Harvard, the demolition and
replacement of Pershing and Barbara C. Jordan, and extensive reno-
vations and additions to Flynn Park, Jackson Park, Brittany Woods,
and University City High.

The architects’ two least expensive options were the plan adopted
by the UCSD board ($56.9 million), and the preservation-oriented
one which called for the retention and rehabilitation of four schools
($57 million). Compared to alternative plans which ranged in price
up to $71 million, the cost difference is negligible. So why the need
for demolition?

\ Barbara C. Jordan
>3 . | Elementary School at
1500 N. 82nd Blvd.
is also slated for

8| demolition. Its pat-
terned brickwork and
subtle mid-century

W influences make it an
integral part of the
surrounding post-war

neighborhood.

Nathaniel Hawthorne
Elementary at 1351
N. Hanley Road will
likely be closed. The
UCSD cited the build- |
ing's size, the needfor
tuck pointing, and the
necessity for addi-
tions as some reasons

for doing so.

Bond Wolfe relied heavily on what they termed “state standards” to
make the case for the additions and Pershing and Barbara C. Jor-
dan’s obsolescence. The firm cited DESE (Department of Elemen-
tary and Secondary Education) and MSIP (Missouri School Im-
provement Plan) requirements as major deterrents to preservation.
Yet DESE offers general recommendations, not mandatory stan-
dards, dealing with square footages (for cafeterias, libraries, etc).
MSIP only requires that “facilities are healthful, adequate in size,
clean, well-maintained, and appropriate to house the educational
programs of the district,” and that the numbers of students in a
given class range from 20 to 25. Class sizes in each of the district’s
schools already fall within this range and will remain so even after
new ones are built and old ones added-upon. None of the schools
have been found to pose threats to students’ health.

Indeed, the chosen plan is predicated on misleading information
and guided more towards vamping up the ancillary facilities of the
district’s schools than remedying buildings which actively inhibit
students’ abilities to learn. New cafeterias, gymnasiums, and media
centers appear to be the focus - for example, Bond Wolfe’s presen-
tation features images of flashy libraries which look something like
the children’s area in Borders bookstores. These upgrades seem
rather cosmetic in the grand scheme of improving student perform-
ance yet their impact upon the UCSD’s building stock will be im-
measurable. Major alterations could severely degrade the architec-
tural integrity of those schools which will remain. Pershing and
Barbara C. Jordan are slated for demolition primarily because of
their purported inability to accommodate the new construction.

The implementation of the Destiny U. City Schools plan is contin-
gent upon the passage of a $53 million bond issue this April.
Though declining enrollment and financial difficulties understanda-
bly lead to school closings, hopefully the UCSD will ensure that
Delmar-Harvard and Nathaniel Hawthorne go to responsible buy-
ers. As for those schools scheduled to receive major additions, it is
of the utmost importance that new construction is sensitive in scale
and materials to their historic designs (which will likely require
firm community input: recent plans for additions to the Maplewood-
Richmond Heights High School involved removing major sections
of the 1929 Ittner design and site plan, and were only deflected
through the dedicated work of local advocates such as Doug
Houser). As for Pershing and Barbara C. Jordan, their architecture
closely mirrors that of their surrounding neighborhoods in a manner
their replacements could never hope to achieve.

The methods and motivations behind this rather destructive, though
well-meaning, plan may be harbingers of things to come for the St.
Louis Public Schools as they seek to restructure in the coming year.
The Special Administrative Board’s Richard Gaines has stated that
the district’s plan may include demolitions; we need to look to the
example set in University City to anticipate what arguments may be
used against preservation, and to what end.

Lindsey Derrington, Researcher
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Rep. Russ Carnahan
to Co-Chair
Historic Preservation
Caucus

Rep. Russ Carnahan (D/MO-3) has
succeeded Brad Miller (D/NC-13) as
the Co-chair of the Historic Preserva-
tion Caucus in the House of Repre-
sentatives. Carnahan, who represents
the City of St. Louis, is a long-time
leader in the use of federal and State
historic preservation tax credits.
Elected to Congress in 2004, he has
been a strong advocate for historic
preservation as a Caucus member, a
supporter of increased funding for the
State Historic Preservation Offices
(SHPOs), and sponsor of the Reha-
bilitation Enhancement Act, a series
of improvements to the federal credit,
introduced in 2004 and 2006. A long-
time friend and supporter of Land-
marks, Carnahan is working with us
in our efforts to save Sugarloaf
Mound. He is working on a rehab tax
credit improvement bill for introduc-
tion in the 111th Congress. Con-
gratulations Congressman!

Toft To Receive State Preservation Honor

Carolyn Hewes Toft, former director of
Landmarks Association, has been cho-
sen to receive the Rozier Award from
Missouri Preservation, the statewide
alliance for Historic Preservation.
Given annually, the Rozier award is
presented to an individual who has
made significant contributions in the
field of historic preservation. Named
after Elizabeth Rozier and her late hus-
band, George, it is Missouri Preserva-
tion’s most prestigious award. Michael
Allen, Landmark Association’s Assis-
tant Director, nominated Toft for the
award, citing her 32 years of service to
the organization and her role in secur-
ing Missouri’s historic tax credit legis-
lation. Toft will be presented with the
award at a ceremony at the Missouri
State Capitol on Thursday, March 5.

Founded in 1976 as the Missouri Heri-
tage Trust, Missouri Preservation has
evolved into a widely respected grass-

roots network of individuals and preser-
vation commissions throughout Mis-
souri. The organization is united in their
efforts to preserve the rich and diverse
cultural and historic resources of the
“Show Me” State and is committed to
protecting the irreplaceable and making
historic preservation a cornerstone of
Missouri’s public policy and planning
agenda for the 21st century. Landmarks
Board Member Jeff Brambila recently
completed his term as president of Mis-
souri Preservation. The Board of Direc-
tors and the Staff of Landmarks Associa-
tion congratulate Carolyn on receiving
this well-deserved honor.

ﬂﬂﬂm

MISSOURI PRESERVATION

KESECUIR ALLIANCE FOR HIETORC PRESERVATICH

4056 WASHINGTON L0OSS DUE TO LACK OF SAFEGUARDS

Landmarks received several phone
calls about the demolition in Decem-
ber of the mansion at 4056 Washing-
ton Boulevard in Midtown. St. Louis
University purchased the house out of
foreclosure in October; the prior
owner had completed some rehabilita-
tion work. The university decided to
demolish the house for eventual ex-
pansion of the adjacent Manresa Cen-
ter. Built in 1891, the architecturally
eclectic house was one of a handful of
houses on a block once lined with 19th
century homes. Three houses on that
block were razed in 2007.

Many callers wondered why the house
fell without a hearing by the city's
Preservation Board. There is a simple
and unfortunate reason: the house was
outside of the jurisdiction of the city's
preservation review ordinance. In
order for the Cultural Resources Of-

fice or the Preservation Board to
review a demolition permit, a house
must have one of the following
statuses: City Landmark designa-
tion, National Register of Historic
Places listing, contributing resource
status in a city or national historic
district or inclusion in a ward that
has preservation review. Since
1999, ward-wide preservation re-
view status is voluntary at the dis-
cretion of city aldermen. Previ-
ously, review was citywide. The
house at 4056 Washington had no
protection, since it enjoys no offi-
cial landmark or district status and
falls in a ward (the 18th) whose
alderman declines to participate in
preservation review. The demoli-
tion permit went straight to the
Building Division, where it was
approved without any consideration
for the historic or architectural sig-

A n

nificance of the house. This lack of compre-
hensive city preservation review leads to
many senseless losses every year.

Michael Allen, Asst. Director
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Charles Savage, John Bratkowski, Osmund
Overby and Sterling Miller with CHT.

Landmarks Association President

Bill Wischmeyer began the
- L

evening’s festivities by welcom-

ing the crowd and reading a
moving tribute to CHT from

Those enjoying “Carolyn Hewes Toft

In Print,” an exhibit specially crafted

for the night included Kevin Kelle-

her, John Bratkowski, Esley Hamil-

ton, Dorothy Martin, Melanie Fath-
man, and lots of others.

Jamie Cannon, afriend, " col- CHT with Congressman Russ Carnahan
league and former president of

the board.

Dan McGuire with Phil Estep and Bob Duffy delighting the
Dorothy Carpenter crowd with his “Awards”.

Tom Villa reads a proclamation from Missouri
House of Representatives.

Kevin Flynn and Kiku Obata Tony Fathman and Greg Event photographs provided by Monica McFee.
with Joe Edwards Hoeltzel. Thanks to the Band!

£
‘d_\—._ P =) I - 4 ? .”;"
Cocktail tables with specially designed luminaries by Gary CHT with Landmarks Director The lobby of the Lammert Building begins to fill as the crowd arrives.

Tetley grace the lobby of the Lammert Building. Jefferson Mansell Over 300 people came to pay tribute to Carolyn and wish her well.
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ARCHITECTURE ST. Louls

UPCOMING EXHIBITS

Point-of-View:

Lewis Place Historic Preservation, Inc.
A PPRC Photography Project Point-of-View Exhibition

February 1 - March 1, 2009
The Carolyn Hewes Toft Gallery

at Architecture St. Louis
911 Washington Avenue, Suite 170
Gallery open from 9:00 a.m. to 5 p.m., Monday thru Friday
Reception
6:00 to 8:00 p.m. Thursday, February 12, 2009
7:00 p.m. Remarks by Pamela Tally,

President, Lewis Place Historic Preservation, Inc.

PPRC Gallery’s Photography and Point-of-
View exhibitions are made possible by the
National Endowment for the Arts, The
Whitaker Foundation, the Missouri Arts
Council (a state agency), the Regional Arts
Commission, the Arts and Education Coun-
cil of Greater St. Louis and the Public Policy ~ pher, Wendy Ewald. Each year, PPRC’s Photography Project teaches volunteer community groups

Research Center. how to photograph the work they do to improved the quality of life in St. Louis. Through these

Sponsored by the Public Policy Research Center at the University of Missouri-St. Louis, this project
was modeled after the pioneering community programs of the internationally recognized photogra-

‘0’ VA amIse partnerships, the Photography Project strives to highlight the undertakings of local organizations
NML 1\‘“\”/;“”“1“‘ A working towards the greater good and to inspire people to take a closer look at and get involved

with their communities. Listed in the National Register, Lewis Place is significant because of its

FOR THE ARTS

The
Waimaker

unique homes and for its role in the reversal of restrictive real estate covenants in St. Louis and

MISSOURI ARTS COUNCIL ACTross the nation.

The 2008 Steedman Fellowship Competition
Adaptive Reuse Along the Mississippi Riverfront
March 2 - April 30, 2009

The Carolyn Hewes Toft Gallery
at Architecture St. Louis
911 Washington Avenue, Suite 170
Gallery open from 9:00 a.m. to 5 p.m., Monday thru Friday
Reception
6:00 to 8:00 p.m. Thursday, March 19, 2009
6:30 p.m. Remarks by William Wischmeyer,

President, Landmarks Association of St. Louis &
Member of the Steedman Foundation

Supported by an endowment given to the Washington University College School of Architec-

“nBA“ E“Enav FAnM ture, the Steedman Fellowship is awarded biannually on the basis of an international Design

Competition. Granted since 1925, the fellowship honors James Harrison Steedman, who re-

Can our waste streams be composted into productive urban agents?

Can our detritus be digested and transformed into valuable commodities?

Can the machinery of waste management double as a creative building engine?

Can architecture make palpable the processes of production, consumption, waste and recycling that
might define an optimistic future for St. Louis, the Mississippi River, and beyond?

ceived a degree in mechanical engineering from Washington University in 1889. The 2008
competition called for candidates to develop concepts for the adaptive reuse of an abandoned
industrial building (the St. Louis Cold Storage Warehouse), just north of downtown. Entries
included a proposal for programming pointedly specific to the present moment and immediate
future, while addressing the eventual re-use of the building. A comprehensible sustainable

Weees. approach to the design was required. Pictured left, the entry by Jason Johnson.
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LECTURES, TOURS, SPECIAL EVENTS

Reservations for events: stschett@stlouis.missouri.org or 314.421.6474 ‘

Restoration Progress at Fairfax
2:00 p.m., Saturday, March 7
Manchester and McNight Roads

Join us as Donia Hunter, president of
Fairfax Restoration, delivers a presenta-
tion on recent restoration work at Fairfax,
followed by a tour of the 19th century house. The James Collier
Marshall Home, known as Fairfax, occupies one corner at the inter-
section of Manchester and McNight Roads, the main intersection in
the St. Louis County city of Rock Hill. Fairfax is one of the oldest
and most significant braced-frame buildings in the Saint Louis
area. The house has faced several threats, resulting in two moves
to save it from demolition. Inclusion on Missouri Preservation's
2008 Most Endangered Properties list sparked a renewed restora-
tion effort. By the end of the year, much of the necessary exterior
work was complete -- but much work remains to be done.

Free, but reservations are requested

Archaeological Investigations at

New Philadelphia, A Multi-Racial Agricultural
Community in West Central Illinois

By Terrance J. Martin, Curator of
Anthropology, Illinois State Museum

7:00 p.m., Thursday, March 12, Architecture S
Louis, 911 Washington Avenue, #170

New Philadelphia was founded by former slave Frank McWorter in
1836 and is the earliest town known to be platted and registered by
an African American in the United States. Located on a tract of
land in west central Illinois, New Philadelphia was envisioned to
be an economic hub for an agrarian community. Lots were pur-
chased by both European Americans and African Americans, and
the town became home to craftsmen, farmers, and laborers until the
late 1800s. Funded by grants from the National Science Founda-
tion, the 2008 field season marked the fourth year of archaeological
research directed at obtaining information on the community. Ex-
cavations have discovered architectural remains and thousands of
artifacts and biological remains. Archaeology and historical docu-
ments are revealing details about lifeways and consumer behavior
in this integrated community.

Lecture free and open to the public, reservations not required

Architecture Weekends

Thanks to generous funding from the Whitaker Foundation, Landmarks
Association is offering a series of monthly tours called "Architecture Week-
ends." These programs include both an on-site tour and a presentation
related to the tour. Throughout the year, Architecture Weekends will be
your gateway to new and familiar sites across the region. All programs are
free and open to the public. More information is available on our website.

The Future of Cleveland High School
1:30 p.m, Saturday, February 21
Cleveland High School, 4352 Louisiana Avenue

When the St. Louis Public Schools moved the Junior ROTC pro-
gram from Cleveland High School in 2006, Dutchtown residents

organized the Alliance to Save Cleveland High School. The alli-
ance has forged a relationship with the school district to use the
historic high school for community programs. However, the ulti-
mate goal is reopening the school, built in 1915 and designed by
William B. Ittner. Alliance co-founder and Landmarks Board
member John Chen will discuss the status of the Alliance's efforts
and lead a tour inside the beautiful, massive landmark.

Industry on the North Riverfront

The Industrial Architecture of the St. Louis Cold Storage
Warehouse

12:00 Noon, Friday, March 20

Architecture St. Louis, 911 Washington Avenue #170

A lunch time talk by Michael R. Allen will cover the history and
architecture of the St. Louis Cold Storage warehouse, subject of
the Steedman exhibit at Architecture St. Louis. The talk will in-
clude information about the development of cold storage ware-
houses in St. Louis and nationwide as well as an overview of rede-
velopment efforts on the north riverfront.

Walking Tour of the North Riverfront Industrial District
Saturday, March 28 at 1:30 PM
North Riverfront Trail Parking Lot, Lewis at Biddle Streets

Lynn Josse, author of the National Register of Historic Places
nomination for the district, and Michael R. Allen will lead a
guided tour of the industrial world of the north riverfront. See the
St. Louis Cold Storage warehouse, the still-operating Ashley
Street Power House, a charming former bath house renovated
using green technology, the birthplace of graniteware and other
sites. Tour approx. 90 minutes, reservations requested.

The City Beautiful: Park Space

""Making Parks in the Central City:

The History of the Gateway Mall"

7:00 p.m., Thursday, April 23, Architecture St. Louis, 911
Washington Avenue #170

Michael R. Allen will give a provocative illustrated lecture on the
evolution of the Gateway Mall, the never-finished downtown park
mall. Starting in the early 20th century with the local City Beauti-
ful movement and the idea of creating parks in the crowded central
city, the mall project moved through various
plans, revisions and missed opportunities.
The city's 2007 Gateway Mall Master Plan is
only the latest attempt to make sense of an
idea gone astray in its implementation.

Tour of Memorial Plaza

Saturday, April 25 at 1:30 p.m.

Meet at East entrance to the Civil Courts
Building, 11th and Market streets

Envisioned as a monumental civic center, the
city's Memorial Plaza area contains a distinguished group of grand
public buildings, including the Civil Courts, former Federal Court-
house, City Hall, Municipal Courts, Kiel Opera House, Soldiers
Memorial and the Central Library. Our tour will cover the build-
ings and parks that make up the plaza area, with planned stops
inside some of the buildings. Reservations requested.
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Landmarks Association Membership - November 1, 2008 - January31, 2009

LIFE MEMBERS

Mrs. V. Ambach

Julia A. Begley

Mr. & Mrs. Stephen F. Brauer
Mrs. G. A. Buder, Jr.

Mrs. Mildred B. Chambers
Larry Cohn

Mrs. Leslie Davison

Mr. & Mrs. Patrick M. Donelan
Dr. & Mrs. Anthony Fathman
Mr. & Mrs. Joseph F. Gleason
Joan Goodson

Barbara Grace

Nancy M. Hamilton

Jeffrey Kimbrell

Mr. & Mrs. E. C. Lindburg
Mr. & Mrs. L. Max Lippman, Jr.
Andrew S. Love, Jr.

Mrs. Don Malvern

Mrs. Jack R. McAllister
Dorothy M. Moore

Robert L. Nussbaumer
William R. Piper

Mr. & Mrs. Peter A. Puleo
Lucianna Gladney Ross

John Saunders

Charles G. Schott, Jr.

Dr. & Mrs. Richard Shaw
Julia J. Stupp

Mr. & Mrs. Robert P. Stupp
R. Philip Stupp, Jr.

H. Meade Summers, Jr.
Carolyn H. Toft

Mr. & Mrs. William P. Wischmeyer
Mrs. Howard F. Yerges

NEW MEMBERS

Friend

John E. Curby, Jr.
Charles K. Hooker
Mike Lang

John Wimmer

Contributing
Lewis Place Historical

Preservation, Inc.

RENEWING MEMBERS

Heritage
Mr. & Mrs. Joseph F. Shaughnessy,
BSI Constructors, Inc.

PATRON

Seth & Marion Eisen

Karen & Lawrence Goering
Emily Rauh Pulitzer

Mr. & Mrs. William Schawacker

BENEFACTOR

Stephen Acree

Sarah & Thomas Cohn

DBA Bruton Stroube Studios
William Forsyth

Gina G. Hilberry

Russ and Adrienne Patton

Guy G. Slay

Mary Strauss
Youth, Education & Health in Soulard

Sustaining

Anonymous

John Fox Arnold

William A. Bowersox

Jeffrey A. Brambila

Mrs. W. F. Brissenden

E. Wardwell Buckner

Joe Clarkson Carpenter

Paul & Martha Cross

Leo A. Drey

David and Kerri Dwars

Joe Edwards

Mrs. Myron Glassberg

Clarence & Janet Harmon

Richard & Evelyn Horner

Nancy & Kenneth S. Kranzberg
Gary & Karen Kreie

Kennett Lehmann

Greg & Jadie Mayes

I. E. Millstone

Kate Hilliker Murashige & Chris Zones
George & Sally Nikolajevich

Mr. & Mrs. Jules L. Pass

Fred Perabo

Sharon & Robert Pettus

Mr. & Mrs. John P. Pirozzi

Thomas W. Rich

William Roth/Roth Investments
Thomas B. & Julia Oberheu Tritschler
Thomas Wyman & Susan Fitzpatrick

Contributing

Donald H. Bergmann

Delores J. Blehm

Pamela Coffin

Lance Finney

Mr. & Mrs. M. Peter Fischer
Robert S. Garrick

Doug Houser & Arlene Boyer-Houser
Mrs. E. S. Howe

Emily Troxell Jaycox

Lillian Katzenmeyer

Robert & Marcia Kern

Maynard Kolbrener

Mr. & Mrs. William K. Laidlaw
John S. Martin & Kris Zapalac
Hugh McPheeters

Richard E. Mueller

Gladys H. Myles

Margie Newman & Alan Brunettin
David Novak

Tim & Leigh Roberts

Warren Rosenblum & Nicole Blumner
Charles & Elizabeth Schasteen
Jerome J. Schlichter

James Steffen & Sandra Sokolik
Judy Taylor

Rob Wagstaff

Donald A. Yatkeman

Judy & Lon Zimmerman

Friend

Robert S. Barringer
John & Ann Begemann
Bob and Grace Bennett

Joan T. Briccetti

Dorothy Brockhoff

Mr. & Mrs. Eugene Buckley
Ann Smith Carr

David A. Chassin

Nancy K. Clark

Laura Cohen

Theodore L. Cover

Laura Derrington

Steven C. Diesing

Bruce & Lynn Dole

David J. Eschmann

Philip D. Estep

David Ferguson

Rockwell Gray

Esley Hamilton

Hannele Haapala & David Juedemann
William M. Hart

Paul Hohmann

Patrick & Mary Hughes
Layne & Robin Ibel

Rich lezzi

Dr. & Mrs. Arnie Jacobson
Betsy Kellerman

Nancy & Bob Klepper
Thomas C. Kuehling
Wiilliam J. Matula

Elyse McBride

Brigid & Matthew McCauley
Helen W. Meyer

James R. Myers

Mary Ann Nielsen

Dan O’ Connor

Robert Officer & Mary F. Davidson-Officer

Mark E. Osborn

Mark & Susan Pfaff

Roger Plackemeier

Rachel A. Presley

Jo Ann Radetic

Teresa M. Reichman

Libby Reuter

Richard Roth

Denise & Bernard Schmitt
Marie & Walter Schmitz

Tim Schoemehl

Paul & Suzanne Schoomer
Larry D. Self

Selligman Design

Sheri Sherman

Margaret Sheppard

Shu Simon

John Speller

St. Louis County Parks & Recreation
Carrie Stetz

Michelle Swatek

Susan M. Taylor

J. Kim Tucci

Mr. & Mrs. David S. Walentik
Lois H. Waninger

Christine Webb

Michael & Richelle Weisbrod
Barrett M. Williams

Bob Winters/Ottolino Winters Huebner, Inc

Senior

Kay C. Albert
Gerald Alexander
Mrs. Alex F. Barlows

Dorothy L. Baumann
George & Virginia Benson
Clemence Chastonay
Edward & Jeannine Cook
Tim Corcoran

Susan Corrington

James P. Cummings

Pamela Danklef

Irvin Joy Drewel

Mary M. Ellis

Martha Fenger

Mr. & Mrs. Harry N. D. Fisher
Eileen M. Franke

Geraldine B. Friedman
Ralph Goerke

T. Jean Goodman

Mr. and Mrs. Walter Gotsch
Mrs. Daniel Heagney

Philip Hoge

Noel C. Holobeck

Marlyne S. Huenneke

Pat Jones

Matilda S. Keil

Mr. & Mrs. Robert E. Kriegshauser
Jeralyn P. Lewitz

David F. Mendelson
Constantine E. Michaelides
Howard E. Miller

Sidney & Christina Monnig
Mrs. W. D. Morris

Ronald & Paula Meyer

Fr. John W. Padberg

Irene W. Patton

Lou & Wilma Prifti

Patricia A. Rein

Helen A. Riechmann
Richard S. Rosenthal

Ed & Linda Ruesing

Ms. Mildred W. Ryan
Laurence & Leslie Schneider
Mr. & Mrs. William Schrimpf
Mr. & Mrs. E. C. Seele
Ruth Seever

Mrs. Ben Smith

Mary Jeanne Suppiger

John H. K. Sweet

Natalie & Keith Wampler
Nancy Wunderlich

Carl P. Zey

Gift Membership
Mr.& Mrs. Hugh R. Bergman for
Christine Webb.

Year-End Appeal &
Additional Contributions

H. Meade Summers, Jr. Foundation
Marvin G. Moore Limited Partnership
Mr. & Mrs. William P. Wischmeyer
Andrew S. Love, Jr.

Arthur M. Branch Trust

Hamilton Charitable Lead Annuity Trust
Joan Goodson

Stephen Acree

Judy & Bob Little

Gary & Janice Weil

(Continued on next page)
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Anthony & Melanie Fathman
Karen & Larry Goering
Nancy M. Hamilton

Susan Barrett

Matt Ghio

Mr. & Mrs. Joseph F. Gleason
YEHS, Bob Brandhorst

Pat Hayes Baer

David & Kerri Dwars

John & Caya Chen

James Dwyer

Nancy Farmer

Rev. Earl Holt, King's Chapel, Boston
Kenneth & Nancy Kranzberg
Sterling Miller

John A. Bratkowski

John Martin & Kris Zapalac
Margaret Decker

Bob Duffy & Martin Kaplan
Debra & Allen Larson

Bob & Anne Stupp

Stephen Acree

Donald Bergmann

Robert Blackburn

Delores, Blehm

Scot & Joanne Boulton
William Bowersox

Mrs. Walter F. Brissenden
Margaret Brockman

Robert & Suzanne Bruce
Constance Deschamps

Joe Edwards

Joan Goodson

Susan & William Heggarty
John Karel

Signe Lin(lquist & Warren Martin
Bob & Judy Little

Ruth Malvern

Charles Manley & Kimberly Perry
Bettie Mathews

Dan & Jill McGuire

Old North St. Louis Restoration Group
Mary Ann Plasmeier

Emily Rauh Pulitzer

Charles Savage

Vincent & Lois Schoemehl

James Steffen & Sandra Sokolik
Tom Villa

Gail Yerges

Frank Hamsher & Peggy Guest
Mary Bard

Karen Bode Baxter

Nancy Bliss

Ronald & Jean Bolte

David Bonetti

Gerald & Mary Brunstrom

E. Wardwell Buckner

Stafford Clark

Carl & Jeanne Deutsch

Dion Dion

Shelley Donaho

Thomas Edelmann

Mrs. Albert B. Fuller, Jr.

Patricia Graf

Esley Hamilton

Clarence & Janet Harmon

Philip Heagney & Barbara Prosser
E. Terrence Jones

Kevin & Beverly Kelleher

Roland Klein

Venita & Richard Lake

Lammert Building Ltd. Partnership
Jefferson Mansell

John & Constance McPheeters

Jeanne Morrel-Franklin
Patrick & Anne Murphy
Osmund Overby

Fred Powers

Ann Reis-Voss

R. Charles Rogers

Carl Safe Design Consultants
Paul & Susan Sauer

Jerry Schlichter

Walter & Marie Schmitz
Adrienne Shuter

Judith Swehla

Judy Taylor

Tom & Susan Tschetter
Beau Vallance & Jack Carpenter
Jeff Winzerling

Ted & Suzanne Zorn
Geraldine Friedman
Philip D. Estep

Tom & Gloria Bratkowski
Jon & Barbara Dressel
Jack & Dorothy Hitt

Teri L. Rose

Margaret Sheppard

Clark Davis

Ray Simon

Alice Abrams

Ruth Ayers

David & Marla Bouchein
Richard & Jill Claybour
Yvonne Condon

Ed & Jeannine Cook
Roberta Dearing

Leah Gantz

William & Jean Gantz
Hannele Haapala & David Juedemann
Ann Hubel

Shirlee & Victor Keitel
Betsy Kellerman
Mary Jane Kirtz
Leslie Laskey
Laura Lock
Darrell McMillian
Judy Meyer & John Gray
Constantine Michaelides
Howard & Penny Miller
Mark Moloney
Julia Oyen-Keller
Joe & Ann Pollack
Jo Ann Radetic
Edward Ruesing
Dale Ruthsatz
Albert Schaefer
Linda Stark
Lois Waninger
David Weber & Valerie Tripi
Russell Carter
David Ehnes
George Hettenhausen
Jeralyn & Edward Lewitz
Scott Moore
Marshall Poger
Patricia Treacy
David Wilmot
Mariann Andersen
Carondelet Community Betterment

Federation
Clay & Kitty Mollman
Thomas & Betsy Bradley
Marion Cadwallader
Robert & Elsie Meyers
Bruce Zuckerman

(as of January 30, 2009)

(Continued from previous page)

E. Wardwell Buckner
Sterling S. Miller

Mrs. Clifford W. Murphy
Sharon & Robert Pettus
Amy Peck Abraham
Karen Bode Baxter

Mr. & Mrs. Hugh R. Bergman
Carondelet Historical Society
Studio Durham Architects
Richard & Evelyn Horner
David H. Hutchinson
Kevin & Bev Kelleher
Kevin Kloster

Barbara Martin

Janet L. Miller

Patrick Murphy

Joanne & Dennis Parrott
Robert Radel

Vince & Lois Schoemehl
Kate Shea

Nancy Suelflow

Tom Villa

Robert Weible

Alexander Young

Ken Zehnder

Marie T. Bergmann

I. E. Millstone

Kate Hilliker Murashige & Chris Zones
E. F. Porter

Mrs. Wm. Barnes III

Mrs. Thomas A. Dooley

William & Janice Forsyth

John & Dora Gianoulakis

Esley Hamilton

Debra M. Burtis Harris

Martin Powers

Warren Rich

Linda Stark

Billy & Nancy Allen

Ron Van Fleet II

Clemence Chastonay

Philip D. Estep

Hannele Haapala & David Juedemann
Glenn & Pat Eckert

Elmer & Betty Kuntz

Barbara & Richard Riley

Marlise Boyer

Michael & Katja Buckley

Mr. & Mrs. M. Peter Fischer

Donald Green

Carol Grove

Nellie Hohnsen

Doug Houser & Arlene Boyer-Houser
Jeffrey L. Huntington

Robert & Marcia Kern

Roland Klein

Maynard Kolbrener
Kenneth & Nancy Kranzberg
Hugh McPheeters

Jane C. Mendelson
Marlowe J. Meyers
Gladys H. Myles

Lois Waninger

George Hettenhausen
Rosemarie Kirchhoefer
Kennett Lehmann
Katherine Burg

Paul & Suzanne Schoomer
Mark E. Osborn

Judith Ugalde

John E. Curby, Jr.
Martha Fenger

Tim Schoemehl

Susan Taylor

Mr. & Mrs. David S. Walentik

Additional Contributions to
Architecture St. Louis (since

last newsletter)

Seth & Marion Eisen

HOK, Inc.

Russ and Adrienne Patton
James Steffen & Sandra Sokolik

Landmarks Association
Receives Planning Grant
from the
National Trust for
Historic Preservation

Landmarks Association has
been awarded a $2,000 grant by
the National Trust for Historic
Preservation from the Kohler
Family Endowed Intervention
Fund. The seed grant funds will
be used for the development of
a strategic plan to guide the
organization in the upcoming
years. In announcing the grant,
National Trust President Rich-
ard Moe said “With these start-
up dollars, Landmarks Associa-
tion joins hundreds of other
communities and organizations
across the country actively
ensuring that America’s archi-
tectural and cultural heritage is
preserved.”




LANDMARKS

association of st. louis, inc.

911 Washington Ave., Suite 170
St. Louis, Missouri 63101

Phone: 314-421-6474
Fax: 314-421-4104

landmark(@stlouis. missiouri.org

VisiT US ON THE WEB AT

WWW.LANDMARKS-STL.ORG

THE BACK PAGE...“HISTORIC PUBLIC SCHOOLS HAVE MUCH TO OFFER”

The first time I heard the name
William B. Ittner, I was sitting
in an architectural history class
where a professor was rightly
touting him as one of the coun-
try’s leading innovators in
American school design work-
ing in the 19th and 20th centu-
ries. He noted that dozens of
entries in the National Register
alone were attributed to the St.
Louis architect. I am certain that
since my graduate days, more
have been added to that list.

It is, therefore, a pleasure for
me to see his handiwork, liter-
ally, in the scores of St. Louis
schools scattered throughout
our historic neighborhoods.
Passing by, I am reminded of
the words of architects George
Kacan and Roger Bolling who,
in reference to local educational
buildings, observed that “these
schools offer what is an often
stunning architectural grace and
grandeur, and they herald a time

when neighborhood life re-
volved around schools.”

In this country, it is estimated
that 28 percent of all public
school buildings were con-
structed before 1950 with many
buildings dating back to the
early 20th century. That is cer-
tainly the case in St. Louis.
Over the past two decades,
however, Americans have wit-
nessed the largest school build-
ing boom in history. Unfortu-
nately, it also has been a time
when the emphasis has been
placed on tearing down sound,
historic and reusable neighbor-
hood buildings and erecting
“mega-schools,” facilities often
located on remote sites that
contribute to sprawl and traffic
congestion.

In 1999, the National Trust for
Historic Preservation recog-
nized the alarming demise of
our country’s historic neighbor-
hood schools and added the

collective properties to its an-
nual “Most Endangered Historic
Places” list. Landmarks Asso-
ciation has routinely included
area schools on our own most
endangered lists as well.

As you can see from this news-
letter, the Board and the Staff of
Landmarks are extremely con-
cerned about the future of St.
Louis’ - and University City’s -
historic school buildings. We
have been monitoring the plan-
ning process, participating in
the current debate, and attend-
ing public meetings to deter-
mine if historic preservation is
to be a consideration entertained
by the consulting firm and the
Special Administrative Board
(SAB). It certainly should be. I
want to personally acknowledge
the commitment of Landmarks
staff members who have de-
voted much time and energy to
this effort and who have worked
so diligently in producing the

position paper and the articles
for this publication.

By the time this newsletter
reaches our members, the SAB
will have reviewed a draft Fa-
cilities Management Plan which
will no doubt call for another
round of school closures. We
strongly urge the SAB to con-
sider the recommendations
contained in our position paper
published in this newsletter.
The SAB should remember that,
in the words of Kacan and
Bolling, “historic schools have
much to offer education-minded
communities: locations im-
mersed in the center of commu-
nities, richly detailed facilities,
and a chance to maintain a vital
connection to a past in which
schools routinely opened their
doors to the community and
residents celebrated their
neighborhood schools.”

Jefferson Mansell
Executive Director







